Public Document Pack

Your ref:
Our ref:
Enquiries to: Lesley Bennett
Email: lesley.bennett@northumberland.gov.ul
Tel direct: 01670 622613
Date: Date Not Specified

Dear Sir or Madam,
Your attendance is requested at a virtual meeting of the HEALTH AND WELLBEING OSC to
be held on TUESDAY, 2 MARCH 2021 at 1.00 PM.
Please note this will be a “virtual meeting” that will be streamed live on our Youtube
channel at youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV
Yours faithfully

Daljit Lally
Chief Executive

To Health and Wellbeing OSC members as follows:J Beynon (Chair), L Rickerby (Vice-Chair), E Armstrong, T Cessford, Hutchinson,
S Dungworth, Nisbet, L Bowman, E Simpson and Lawrie
Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this virtual meeting live
on our YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV. Members of
the press and public may tweet, blog etc during the live broadcast as they would be able
to during a regular Committee meeting. However, the only participants in the virtual
meeting will be the Councillors concerned and the officers advising the Committee.

Daljit Lally, Chief Executive
County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF
T: 0345 600 6400
www.northumberland.gov.uk

AGENDA
PART I
It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda
will be dealt with in public.

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

(Pages 1
- 16)

Minutes of the meetings of the Health & Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny
Committee held on 12 January 2021 and 2 February 2021, as circulated, to
be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.
3.

DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests,
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any
discussion or vote on the matter.
NB Any member needing clarification must contact the Monitoring Officer
at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Please refer to the guidance
on disclosures at the rear of this Agenda letter.

4.

FORWARD PLAN

(Pages
17 - 18)

To note the latest Forward Plan of key decisions. Any further changes to
the Forward Plan will be reported at the meeting.
5.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

(Pages
19 - 26)

The minutes of the Health & Wellbeing Board held on 14 January 2021 is
attached for the scrutiny of any issues considered or agreed there.
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY
6.

COVID-19 UPDATE (PUBLIC HEALTH AND CCG)
To receive a presentation from the Director of Public Health and the
Clinical Commissioning Group (APPENDIX C).

7.

CORONER’S SERVICE
To receive a presentation from Andrew Hetherington, Senior Coroner and
Karen Lounton, Service Manager (attached as APPENDIX D).

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 March 2021

(Pages
27 - 42)

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY OFFICER
8.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING OSC WORK PROGRAMME
To consider the work programme/monitoring report for the Health and
Wellbeing OSC for 2019/20.

9.

URGENT BUSINESS
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

10.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next remote meeting is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 6 April 2021.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 March 2021

(Pages
43 - 58)

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE:
● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it
becomes apparent to you.
● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.
Name (please print):

Meeting:
Date:
Item to which your interest relates:

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code
of Conduct) (please give details):

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details):

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?

1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the
issue being discussed in the meeting:
a) relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of
Conduct); or

Health and Wellbeing OSC, Tuesday, 2 March 2021

b) any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)
The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you
or your spouse or civil partner:
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts
with the Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies
with the Council; or (7) Securities - interests in Companies trading with the Council.
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests:
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to
which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which (i) exercises
functions of a public nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal
purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade
union) of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management ); or (3)
any person from whom you have received within the previous three years a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable to your position as an elected or
co-opted member of the Council.
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest
when you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an
item of business which is to be transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well
being or financial position, or the well being or financial position of a person described below to
a greater extent than most inhabitants of the area affected by the decision.
The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you
have a close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer,
any firm in which they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder.
3. Non-participation in Council Business
When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or subcommittees, and you are aware that the criteria set out below are satisfied in relation to any
matter to be considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact
to the meeting; (b) Not participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; (c) Not participate in any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting;
and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed.
The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or
non-registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public
knowing the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position
of yourself or one of the persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries;
or (c) the matter concerns a request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought
by yourself or any of the persons referred to above or in any of your register entries.
This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which
are contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct. If in any doubt, please consult the
Monitoring Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 March 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
At a remote meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
held on Tuesday, 12 January 2021 at 1.00pm
PRESENT
Councillor J. Beynon
(Chair, in the Chair)
COUNCILLORS
Armstrong, E.
Bowman, L.
Cessford, T.
Dungworth, S.
Hutchinson, J. I.

Lawrie, R.
Nisbet, K.
Rickerby, L.J.
Simpson, E.
.

CABINET MEMBER
Jones, V.

Adults Wellbeing
OFFICERS

Angus, C.
Brooks, P.

Scrutiny Officer
Service Lead – Northumberland
Communities Together Hub
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Executive Director Adult Social Care and
Children’s Services
Director, Business Development &
Communities
Senior Manager - Safeguarding Adults

Little, L.
McEvoy-Carr, C.
Taylor, M.
Wright, K.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE
Mead, P.

Independent Chair, North Tyneside and
Northumberland Safeguarding Adults
Board

Mitcheson, R.
Nugent, D.
Railton, T.

Healthwatch Northumberland
Cumbria Northumberland and Tyne &
Wear NHS Foundation (CNTW)

Page 1

135. MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee meeting held on Tuesday 2 December 2020, be approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.
136. FORWARD PLAN
The latest Forward Plan of key decisions (attached to the signed minutes as
Appendix A) were received. The Scrutiny Officer advised that the Corporate
Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee would consider a
report on the Council’s Budget 2021-22 and Medium Term Financial Plan 2021-24 at
their meeting on 8 February 2021 to which all Scrutiny Members were invited. Any
Members wishing to attend should advise the Chair, Councillor Bawn, to ensure that
invitations were issued to the virtual meeting.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.
REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY
137. NORTH TYNESIDE AND NORTHUMBERLAND SAFEGUARDING ADULTS
ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
The report (attached as Appendix B to the signed minutes) provided an overview of
the work carried out under the multi-agency arrangements for safeguarding adults in
2019/20 and was introduced by Paula Mead, the Independent Chair, who advised it
was a statutory requirement for the Board to produce and publish an Annual Report.
The Committee was advised that the multi-agency arrangements ensure that all
partners worked together in a coordinated way to safeguard adults who were at risk
and those organisations who had a duty to safeguard and protect adults were all
represented. There had been an increase in reports of concern and safeguarding
enquiries over the reporting period, which the Board had been pleased to note as it
meant that people were coming forward. The majority of cases investigated had
occurred in people’s own homes, however some had taken place within a care
setting. The cases had mostly involved physical abuse with some neglect and
financial abuse also being reported.
Achievements over the period were highlighted including the further development of
the joint Children’s and Adults MASH, which was a unique model as these were
usually separate entities, with a CNTW representative also now involved. The use of
the Herbert Protocol had now been introduced which prepared information regarding
vulnerable adults, so that if they went missing all information was on record and
could be given quickly to the Police.
The four main priorities were outlined as follows :
Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 2

2







Transitions – to manage the arrangements for vulnerable young people
moving to adult services from children’s services
Early identification of domestic abuse – the Police were now reporting more
incidents of domestic abuse and violence since lockdown.
Criminal Exploitation – an inspection had found that whilst Northumberland
had a good understanding of sexual exploitation, more work had been
required around criminal exploitation of both young people and vulnerable
older people and work on the processing and gathering intelligence had led to
improvements being made.
Embedded Safeguarding – to ensure that everyone was engaged.

During Covid lockdown the key message to partners had been that safeguarding still
applied, in fact probably more so, with multi agency leads meetings being held
weekly, then fortnightly followed by monthly to gain assurances from them. A Covid
risk register was compiled to identify and manage risk and, after it was found that
there was a duplication of resources, this was joined with children’s services as
many of the same officers were involved with both, and it had been found to work
well.
There had been one serious case review, with a number of cases which had been
referred did not meet the statutory requirements for a review, however the learning
from these had been disseminated to staff.
In response to questions from Members it was clarified that there was a clear
procedure in place on when to override consent to referral, i.e. if the individual lacked
the mental capacity to make the decision; if it was in the public interest or the
individual would be a risk to others or if it was felt that the individual was acting under
coercion or was under the control of another person. Any decision would be fully
documented and would be explained to the individual. In respect of alcohol abuse
evidence suggested that it was now the over 50’s who were more dependent on
alcohol with younger people being more likely to be dependent on drugs. There had
been a lot of work undertaken, following concerns by Public Health England and the
CCG on the prevention of suicide.
The Committee thanked Paula for her excellent report.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
139.

COVID VACCINE
A presentation which provided details of the Covid Vaccine was provided by
Rachel Mitcheson, Service Director for Transformation and Integrated care and
Elizabeth Morgan, Director of Public Health. A copy of the presentation would be
filed with the signed minutes and be uploaded to the Council’s website.
Members were advised of the excellent response by GPs in delivering the vaccine to
patients aged over 80 along with residents and staff of care homes within
Northumberland from 15 December 2020, across 10 sites in the County and the

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 3

3

reasons why these sites had been chosen. Details of other locations along with the
categories of people who were eligible to receive the vaccine at the current time
were also outlined. There had been some confusion surrounding the Government’s
decision to postpone the second vaccination, which had been expected to be 21
days after receiving the first dose, to allow more people to receive the first dose, but
this was now mandatory. The different types of vaccine were highlighted with District
Nurses now able to vaccinate housebound patients.
In relation to the push to vaccinate teachers, it was clarified that the vaccine was
being provided to individuals based on clinical risk with age being the biggest risk.
Some teachers would fall into the clinical priority groups identified by the
Government as being more at risk.
D Nugent, Healthwatch, thanked both Officers for their presentation and the
information provided which had gone some way to addressing some of the issues
which Healthwatch had heard from residents, and she highlighted the need for
continuing and varied communication. There was a lot of uncertainty surrounding
the vaccination programme and it was very important to have good communication
going forward. Issues which had been brought to Healthwatch had been surrounding
when and where would people be vaccinated and how would they get there.
Healthwatch had prepared some materials about being prepared, such as ensuring
patients’ details were current and up to date with GP surgeries and to think about
how they would get to the relevant location if they did not have their own transport,
which was particularly relevant to the over 75’s especially in rural areas. The greater
use of local centres would allay some fears surrounding travel, however more
options being available for travel would allow a better take up of the vaccination,
especially when last minute appointments were offered. She questioned what
Healthwatch could do to alleviate some of the uncertainties and maintain the
momentum of the vaccine programme.
In response to questions from the Committee the following information was provided:






Initially it had not been possible for the trays of the Pfizer vaccines to be split,
however with the co-operation of the GPs it had been possible for some to be
transported to care homes. The initial vaccines had a short shelf life and the
distribution of these had been logistically challenging. The roll out of the
Oxford/AstraZeneca vaccine was now allowing vaccinations to be provided to
the housebound by District Nurses.
Government advice would need to be provided on when areas could move
through the different groups to be vaccinated.
The different vaccines could not be mixed.
As part of the Covid regulations and guidance, Local Authorities had been
urged to provide an undertaking for homeless people to be rehoused or be
provided with accommodation if they were willing to accept this. The Council
were also looking to see how they could support homeless people to become
registered with a GP in order that they had medical support and would be able
to be vaccinated through the programme. However it was stressed the
vaccination was voluntary and there would be some people who would not
want it.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 4

4





There had been very little usable data so far provided on the take up of the
vaccine provided by NHS England. It was thought that the take up by the over
80’s had been good and there had been a positive response by the majority of
care home staff. A list was kept of those in high risk jobs who could be
contacted at short notice to receive the vaccine to avoid any wastage.
The clinical trials of the vaccines had looked at whether they prevented
symptoms and markers of immunity, it was not known if the vaccines
prevented transmission and there was ongoing research into this.

Councillor Nisbet highlighted the excellent work which was being undertaken at
Railway Medical Group based in her Ward in Blyth in delivering the vaccine and
Members thanked all those concerned for their work across the whole of the
Northumberland.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.
140.

CEDAR
A presentation was provided from T Railton on behalf of the CNTW on CEDAR,
which had been circulated prior to the meeting. A copy of the presentation would be
filed with the signed minutes as Appendix C and would be uploaded to the Council’s
website. He advised that the CEDAR Programme consisted of three major
developments, two of which were relevant to Northumberland. A state-of-art mental
health and learning disability secure facilities at Northgate Hospital near Morpeth and
improved mental health and learning disability in-patient facilities for children and
young people at the Ferndene Hospital, Prudhoe, including new medium secure
facilities. Planning permission had been secured for both sites with CEDAR being
approved as one of the Government’s 40 new hospitals programme and had both
Treasury and NHS approval. The focus was to improve accommodation and provide
a secure environment to focus on rehabilitation and provide a step down from higher
security levels.
In response to questions from Members, the following information was noted:



There was an obligation as part of the planning permission to provide just
under £250,000 to improve the bus services to Northgate and a cycleway was
also to be provided. As part of a patient’s care package assisted travel was
provided to allow families to visit if they lived some distance away. The
design of the site provided for two new bus stops, one within the development
and the other at the entrance to the St Andrews housing development.
There would be no emergency admissions made to Northgate, all admissions
would be through assessments as this was a highly specialised provision.
Emergency admissions would be made to either the unit at Gosforth or St.
Georges Hospital. In respect of Ferndene, the young people would have
received assessments in other secure environments to go into the medium
secure unit, however there were some beds for some genuine emergency
care for young people. The demand for beds had reduced significantly over
the last few years as more care for young people was provided at home or in
the community.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 5

5

The Committee welcomed and thanked Mr Railton for his presentation.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.
141.

NORTHUMBERLAND COMMUNITIES TOGETHER
M Taylor, Director, Business Development & Communities provided an update on
the activities undertaken by Northumberland Communities Together across the
Christmas period, which had gone smoothly. A lot of activity had taken place in the
run-up to this period with additional support provided to the local community groups
who were providing excellent services in their areas. A lot of work had been done in
relation to the winter support grant and arrangements for funding for free school
meals, food vouchers and essential support to local communities. Northumberland
Choices had piloted a scheme in Berwick which had allowed vulnerable families to
get a food delivery or have a meal with their family from local providers, prior to the
further lockdown and this would be taken forward when allowed.
The County had 20,000 shielded residents with the advice that they should continue
to stay at home. A lot of communications were provided to support this. The level of
calls had not escalated to the Hub over the Christmas period, which could be
credited to the work done over the last nine months to provide reassurance to
residents. There had been some concerns regarding the availability of food slot
deliveries for shielding residents in the run up to Christmas with more people using
these, however this did not materialise with the supermarkets doing a good job in
managing these. The shielding list was monitored with a further 217 people being
added. Every shielding resident had received a further letter at the beginning of the
current lockdown and therefore it was not considered appropriate to send out further
correspondence repeating the same information. There were still risks once
vaccinated and the need to continue to shield was important to protect themselves
and prevent the further spread of the virus.
Northumberland Communities Together would continue to do the activities to prevent
isolation and loneliness and keep the connections with vulnerable residents which
had worked well and would continue to support families who were struggling. There
were proposals for the development of Community Hubs and a report would be
provided later in the year.
The Committee thanked Ms Taylor for her update.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.

142. WORK PROGRAMME
Members considered the work programme/monitoring report for the Health and
Wellbeing OSC for 2019/20. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix
D)

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 6

6

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.
143.

NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Tuesday 2 February 2021 at 1:00 pm.
CHAIR ___________________________
DATE _________________-_______

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 12 January 2021

Page 7

7

This page is intentionally left blank

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
At a remote meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on
Tuesday, 2 February 2020 at 1.00pm
PRESENT
Councillor J. Beynon
(Chair, in the Chair)
COUNCILLORS
Armstrong, E.
Bowman, L.
Cessford, T.
Dungworth, S.

Hutchinson, J. I.
Nisbet, K.
Rickerby, L.J.

ALSO PRESENT
Angus, C.
McEvoy-Carr, C

Scrutiny Officer
Executive Director Adult Social Care and
Children’s Services
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

Bartoli, B.
Blair, A.
Hudson, R.
Jenkins, C.
Mackey, J.
McNealy, P.
Mitcheson, R.
Nugent, D
Riley, C.
Sayers, G.
Steven, L.
Walshe, A.

144.

Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumberland CCG
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumberland CCG
Healthwatch Northumberland
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumberland CCG
Northumbria Healthcare NHS
Northumbria Healthcare NHS

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors V Jones.

145.

MINUTES

Page 9

The minutes of the previous meeting were not ready for circulation alongside the
agenda for this meeting. The Scrutiny Officer informed the Committee that the January
minutes would be included with the March meeting agenda but if members wanted sight
of these before this date, they could contact the Scrutiny Officer.
146.

FORWARD PLAN
The latest Forward Plan of key decisions (attached to the signed minutes as Appendix
A) were noted.
The Budget 2021-22 and Medium Term Financial Plan would be reported to the
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee for prescrutiny on 8 February 2021 with all Scrutiny Committee Members invited to attend.
Any members unable to attend can submit a written question to either the Scrutiny
Officer or Sean Nicholson, Scrutiny Co-Ordinator by Wednesday 4 February.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.

147.

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health & Wellbeing Board held on 12 November
2020 and 10 December 2020 (attached as Appendix B) were noted.

REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY
148.

NORTHUMBRIA HEALTHCARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST – COVID-19 UPDATE
Members received an updated presentation on the COVID-19 pandemic from Sir James
Mackey, Chief Executive of Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust.
(Presentation attached as Appendix C).
The Committee were shown how many COVID positive tests were conducted on a
given day. On 21 January 2021, 100 admitted patients were tested for COVID-19 with
17 testing positive. The highest day Northumbria had experienced was a couple of
days after this with 33-35 positive tests. In the autumn there had been between 1-3
positive tests a day with an increase in positive cases in the run up to the Christmas
period and beyond.
With regards to bed occupancy on the 21 January 2021, the Committee were shown an
infographic which showed the Trust running at a healthy 80.2% occupancy across the
Trust. Of the 793 beds available, 173 were occupied by COVID positive inpatients. The
Committee were informed that this increased after this date to its highest number of 187
beds. The infographic showed there had been 100% occupancy of critical care beds but
that this was a fluid situation and was liable to change by the hour.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

2

Page 10

Northumbria had been working with the Critical Care Network to help with pressures.
This had been effective and had enabled Newcastle Hospitals to accept patients from
the South of England and Birmingham. It was possible that London and the South East
had not experienced three waves and it was difficult to tell if the current wave was a
third wave or a continuation of the second wave. Assuming three waves, each wave
had been getting worse. During April of last year, the graph showed 140 beds occupied
by COVID. There had been limited testing available at this time and it is likely that the
true numbers were closer to 180 or 190.
With regards to mortality, there had been a period during the summer were there had
been no COVID deaths but from September the COVID positive deaths had started to
increase. The Committee were informed that, unfortunately, the Trust had lost their first
member of staff to COVID the day before the meeting.
Just under 100,000 patients had been admitted to Northumbria since 18 March 2020,
this included 2404 COVID positive patients. There had been a total of 512 COVID
positive deaths at the Trust. It was recognised that this had a tragic impact on the wider
community and staff. Northumbria had remained open for other normal business and
had maintained other services.
The Committee were told that mortality was difficult to compare due to the use of
different systems and places of death such as care homes or private homes. Hospital
mortality data was also difficult to obtain and compare. The presentation showed that
21% of COVID positive patients had passed away. Northumbria has a respiratory
support unit which allows for non-mechanical ventilation. 135 patients had been in
critical care but 217 had been on the respiratory support unit which has allowed for
greater capacity. This had allowed Northumbria to take patients from other areas such
as Cumbria and South Tyneside. Additionally, this eased the pressure from Newcastle
Hospitals which had allowed them to take admissions from Birmingham and the South
East.
Treatment and care of COVID patients had improved with greater understanding of the
disease. This had been evident in the figures between April 2020 – August 2020 and
September 2020 – January 2021. Patients now had a much better chance of survival
but stay in hospital much longer.
The North East had been praised for its delivery of the vaccine with much of the work
being carried out by primary care. Community rates had been declining; however, this
is yet to translate into a reduction of hospital admissions. The Trust emphasised the
collaboration between the Trust, CCG and Local Authority.
The Trust reiterated to the Committee the importance of sticking to the rules in light of
the new variant. The new variant had been found to be more contagious than previous
variations of COVID-19, although, there was no evidence it cause a more critical illness.
Northumbria had continued to deliver a full range of services throughout the pandemic
with some elective care having to be cancelled in the last few weeks to help free up staff
for critical care capacity. Overall, performance at Northumbria had been good both
nationally and regionally. A&E numbers had been lower than normal as patients
accessed services in different ways.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

3

Page 11

Northumbria had developed a PPE manufacturing hub. There were plans to develop
this hub further and to provide a broader supply chain for the NHS and beyond in
coming years. The Committee were informed that the Trust’s strategy post COVID
would focus on recovery and the Trust’s role in society.
Sir James Mackey gave thanks to all the staff, public and partners for their support and
efforts in fighting COVID-19.
The following comments were made in response to questions raised by members:•

•

•

•

Travelling for vaccines – The preference is for primary care to deliver the
vaccines; however, the process is being controlled by central government and
some people are being asked to travel to the vaccination hubs such as the Centre
for Life in Newcastle. It is expected that more hubs like the Centre for life will be
set up. The NHS has tried to influence Government vaccination priorities.
Public Health England are conducting numerous studies on vaccine effectiveness
and monitoring any new strains. It is thought that there is about 150 different
strains of the virus in the UK. Vaccines are developed to be updated and changed
as the virus evolves. Its expected that the vaccine will be amended with booster
shots depending on the dominate strain. The COVID vaccine will become a
regular vaccine like the flu vaccine.
The vaccine is reducing the severity of illness but not the rate of infection. As not
all the population has been vaccinated yet the worry is those who are vaccinated
may pass on the more highly contagious variant to someone who has not been
vaccinated and would therefore be a risk of being seriously ill and needing hospital
treatment. It is unclear to what extent any vaccine reduces transmission.
The strength of Northumbria’s team has helped the Trust cope with increased
demand.

Prise was given for the quality of the report to the Committee and for the hard work the
NHS was undertaking. Condolences were also expressed for the death of the
Northumbria member of staff who had passed away the previous day.
RESOLVED that the information be noted.
149.

NORTHUMBERLAND CCG – COVID-19 UPDATE
Members were updated on the work primary care have been doing throughout the
COVID-19 pandemic. The update also provided an overview of care homes and
expectations for the future. The presentation was delivered by Dr Graeme Sayers,
Clinical Chair of Northumberland CCG. Report attached as Appendix C.
Dr Graeme Sayer outlined how GP practices have managed capacity. The CCG had
been undertaking a twice-weekly SitReps with practices to monitor issues and provide
proactive support and advice. GP practices had been receiving additional support from
NHSE/I via the General Practice COVID Capacity Expansion fund; this had allowed the
CCG to deploy more resources, such as additional staff, to GP practice to help keep
services running and help support national programs. NHSE/I also increased income

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

4

Page 12

protection to free up capacity so practices could deliver the COIVD-19 vaccination
program.
Dr Sayer showed the Committee a table that highlighted how primary care had coped
over given weeks in areas such as patient demand, staff absence, service levels, hot
patient demand and, availability of PPE. Patient demand had been affected by the
lockdowns with many patients staying away from practices during the first lockdown
leading to a surge in the summer. There had not been the same type of reduction
during the current lockdown as there had been during the first lockdown. This had
caused some pressure on services but nothing too serious. In relation to PPE
availability the Committee were told that whilst there had been some problems during
the first lockdown there had been no issues in the recent week. Overall, GP practices
had coped well with demand with 7 out of 37 practices having expected some
unexpected pressure but being able to manage this internally. These figures were
similar to what had been reported throughout the pandemic.
Community mental health services had been under pressure and work had been done
to help support these services. COVID related staff absences (vaccination sideeffects/asymptomatic staff testing) continued to add some pressure to services.
The Joint Outbreak Control Group had been involved in managing outbreaks at care
homes. All residents in care homes had been offered vaccinations apart from those
who had recently had COVID and must wait 4 weeks before they can be offered the
vaccine. Dr Sayers stressed the importance of infection, prevention and control,
especially in light of the new COVID-19 variant. Within the next week or two all
vaccinated residents will see the benefit of their vaccine and some problems will cease
to exist.
This system of designated commissioned beds for discharge had worked well and
allowed residents to be placed in the most appropriate care home setting. There had
been no reported problems with bed blocking.
The Committee were informed about the impact of long COVID and the effect it can
have on patients. Dr Sayers pointed out that long COVID did not affect everyone who
had had COVID and did not affect everyone in the same way. There had been clinics
set up in Northumberland for GPs to refer people suffering from long COVID in to.
The Oximetry@Home system were helping to get oximeters to people at home who
were suffering from breathlessness. This allowed GPs to check results twice a week
without the need for patients to travel to GP practices. This scheme would be rolled out
across all of Northumberland. CVWs have allowed people to be monitored at home,
fortunately, Northumberland had not seen the levels needed for this system, but the
Committee were assured that the system was there should it be needed.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

5

Page 13

The important next steps were to continue to keep GP services running and whilst
mental health had not been mentioned in the presentation, the CCG were aware of its
importance and were supporting mental health services.
The Chair thanked Dr Sayers for his detailed report and the work of the CCG.
The following comments were made in response to questions raised by members:•
•

•

Regarding Oximetry@home – It was important that people fully understand how to
use oximeters at home with support.
Mental health waiting times – There were different levels of mental health support
and TalkingMinds had had additional resources to support them. Community
mental health teams have had to adapt and have been doing a lot more remote
working which provides new challenges. The CCG receive regular SitReps from
the mental health services.
Travel for vaccinations – The Pfizer vaccine required people to travel but the
Oxford vaccine is more flexible. This has allowed PCNs to look at alternative ways
for people to travel.

RESOLVED that the report be noted
150.

NORTHUMBERLAND CANCER PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT OF COVID –
NORTHUMBERLAND CCG AND NORTHUMBRIA HEALTHCARE
The presentation (attached as Appendix D) was delivered by Dr Robin Hudson, CCG
Medical Director and Clinical Lead for Cancer, Amanda Walshe, Lead Cancer Nurse at
Northumbria Healthcare and Paul McNealy, General Manger for Cancer Services. The
presentation gave the Committee an update on cancer performance and the impact of
COVID.
The Committee were informed that overall cancer performance had been good with a
slight improvement this year. In previous presentations given to the Committee, they
had been told of the pressures faced by urology. The system has since been
redesigned which has enabled urology services to improve.
The Committee were told of the current area of focus such as dermatology. The 2 week
wait threshold had been significantly affected by COVID with social distancing making
examinations difficult. There had been difficulties in bowel, breast and cervical
screening; however, the CCG recognised the importance of screening and work had
been done to overcome these difficulties.
Across the Northern Cancer Alliance, the number of 2 week wait referrals dropped
significantly due to patients not attending primary care during the first lockdown. This
had now picked up again; however, lung, head and neck cancer have not returned to
pre-COVID levels. Dr Hudson speculated that this may be because lung cancer
presents itself in mild symptoms such as a slight cough which patients may mistake for
a cold.

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

6

Page 14

Dr Hudson informed the Committee of the 3-phase recover plan to restore demand,
reduce waiting times and ensure sufficient capacity. Work was also being done to
support primary care and ensuring services are up to speed with referrals.
The Committee were shown 62-day performance data which showed Northumbria
regularly meeting the 85% performance target last year. The same level of
achievement had not been reached as regularly by other Trusts in the area.
With regards to oncology treatment there had been an increase in the progression of
disease and emotional wellbeing of patients due to COVID. Members were shown a
graph which depicted the number of day cases (green line) and ward attendance (blue
line). The red dotted line indicated new types of treatment which was a move to more
personalised care; this had led to an increase in treatment.
Patient surveys had been undertaken to help capture the views of oncology patients to
allow greater understanding of their emotional wellbeing. In August, the views of
patients going through the first lockdown showed an increase in telephone consultations
whilst video calls had not proved as popular with patients and not everyone had access
to digital. Initially, pre- assessments were done via phone or video; however, nurses
found that this did not give enough information or provide sufficient quality. It was
therefore agreed to return to face to face pre-assessments. The survey also highlighted
that 96% of patients felt listened to and 98% felt safe on a unit.
The support to patients had changed very quickly in a short space of time. The Trust
recognised that more work needed to be done to capture the impact of COVID on
patients.
The CCG felt that COVID had accelerated the rate of change within cancer services.
Prior to COVID GPs did not have the tools to identify colorectal cancer, GPs had to refer
patients into Northumbria Healthcare who undertook a colonoscopy. This had changed
with the introduction of a FIT test which could be carried out by GPs which allows
Consultants to examine referrals and better focus colonoscopies to high risk patients
and enable low risk to have CT scan. This has had a positive impact on waiting times
for patients. A new digital dermatology pathway has been developed during COVID
which it is expected will have a similar impact on waiting times.
The following comments were made in response to questions raised by members:•

Despite the difficulties of COIVD the Committee were assured that the services
had adapted to ensure they could continue to successfully diagnose and treat
patients.

The CCG and Trust were thanked for their presentation and were thanked on behalf of
Northumberland residents for the work they were doing. It was RESOLVED that the
report be noted.
151.

WORK PROGRAMME
Members considered the work programme/monitoring report for the Health and
Wellbeing OSC for 2019/20. (Report attached to the signed minutes as Appendix E.)

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

7

Page 15

Members were reminded that there was limited left within this municipal year for items
to be added to the work programme. A report on the work of Coroner’s Service during
COVID and a Public Health update would be coming to the Committee in March.
RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.
152.

NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Tuesday 2 March 2021 at 1:00 pm.
CHAIR ___________________________
DATE ___________________________

Health and Wellbeing OSC, 2 February 2021

8

Page 16

Forward Plan
FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS MARCH TO JUNE 2021
DECISION

PROPOSED SCRUTINY DATE

CABINET DATE

N/A

9 March 2021

Update of School Organisation Plan – 2018-21
This is the third and final report to update Cabinet on
the latest iteration of the School Organisation Plan 201821 which has been refreshed to reflect the latest
data schools and information on pupil forecasts by
partnership in relation to school place planning. A new
School Organisation Plan will be drafted to replace it
from 2021.
(G. Renner Thompson/ S. Aviston – 01670 622281)

FACS 4 March 2021

9 March 2021

Northumberland Sports Facility Strategy 2019-2031
Northumberland Playing Pitch Strategy 2019-2031
To confirm that the Northumberland Indoor Sports Facility
Strategy (IFS) and Northumberland Playing Pitch Strategy
(PPS) have been completed in accordance with the study
briefs, to identify the key findings and recommendations, and
consider the use and publication of these documents
(J. Watson/ N. Walsh – 07789654472)

C&P 3 March 2021

9 March 2021

Page 17

Financial Performance 2020-21 - Position at the end of
December 2020
The report will provide Cabinet with the revenue financial
position as at 31 December 2020 for the Council against the
Budget for 2020-21.
(N. Oliver/A. Elsdon 01670 622168)

Agenda Item 4

1

Purchase and Onward Sale of NEP3 Site
The report sets out the current position regarding the work
being undertaken to enable the Council to proceed with the
purchase of the NEP3 site and proposed onward sale
(Confidential report)
R. Wearmouth/H. Smith - (07776 350515)

Page 18

Financial Performance 2020-21 - Provisional Outturn
The report will provide Cabinet with the revenue financial
position as at 31 March 2021 for the Council against the
Budget for 2020-21.
(N. Oliver/A. Elsdon 01670 622168)

CSEG 8 March 2021

9 March 2021

11 May 2021

Agenda Item 5
NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

At a remote meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on Thursday, 14 January
2021.
PRESENT
Councillor R.R. Dodd
(Chair, in the Chair)

BOARD MEMBERS
Brown, S.
Dungworth, S.
Firth, R.
Jones, V.
Lothian, J.
Mackey, J. (part)
Mead, P.

McEvoy-Carr, C.
Morgan, E.
Riley, C. (substitute member)
Thompson, D.
Travers, P.
Warrington, J. (substitute member)
Watson, J.
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

Bridges, A.
Mitcheson, R.

Head of Communications
Service Director: Transformation
and Integrated Care
Democratic Services Officer

Todd, A.

67. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from N. Bradley, C. Briggs, Councillor G.
Renner-Thompson, Councillor H.G.H. Sanderson, G. Syers and C. Wardlaw.

68. MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held
on Thursday, 10 December 2020, as circulated, be confirmed and signed by the
Chair.

69. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
Ch.’s Initials………

Page 19

1

69.1 REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND CHILDREN’S
SERVICES
Update on the Northumberland COVID 19 Outbreak Prevention and Control
Plan
Members were provided with an update on the epidemiology of COVID 19 in
Northumberland and developments with the Council’s COVID 19 Outbreak
Prevention and Control Plan. (A copy of the powerpoint presentation has been filed
with the signed minutes).
Liz Morgan, Director of Public Health updated Members on the latest figures and
actions agreed in response to the increasing rates of infection being seen in
Northumberland. The presentation covered the following:• The weekly case rates across those LA7 had been very similar.
• After the peak of cases across the region the numbers of positive cases were now
falling with officers remaining cautiously optimistic that cases would continue to fall.
• The heat map provided identified the spread of COVID positive cases across age
bands. Those people over the age of 60 remained the age range most concerned
about and most likely to be linked closely to potential hospital admissions.
• Almost every age band was seeing a fall case rates.
• Graphs showing the increase in admissions to hospitals and related cases to deaths
were shown. It demonstrated that the increasing number of cases seen in the early
part of the month would likely result in an increase in the number of admissions and
unfortunately, in an increase number of deaths.
• Confirmation that Hospital Trusts were now experiencing increasing admissions due
to COVID and a larger proportion of their patients with COVID needing to stay in
hospital.
• Regarding controlling the infection across Northumberland there were now two
different tests available; the PCR test and the Lateral flow device (LFD). The PCR
tests were used to test people with symptoms and the LFD for those who were
displaying no symptoms.
• Support and encouragement was being offered to schools to help with the roll out of
rapid testing using the LFD. This would enable children coming back into school to be
tested along with weekly testing of staff. This would allow close contacts to remain
in school as long as they did not receive a positive test result.
• It was reported primary schools and maintained nursery schools were to commence
home testing of staff.
• Domiciliary care staff would also be tested weekly using PCR.
• Regarding targeted community testing, PCR testing was available to book at sites
across the county.
• It was noted that a Task and Finish group had been set up to drive forward the
delivery of community rapid testing using the LFD’s.
• The four wrap around support teams continue to be extremely busy especially the
care homes team. There had been reported some significant outbreaks in a few of
the care homes and support was being offered to assist. There were concerns that
some care home staff may not take up the offer of a vaccination. Work was currently
taking place to understand their reasoning behind this.
• The work of the infection prevention and control nurses in supporting care homes
was commended.
Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 20

2

•

It was reported that there were currently 5800 children still within a school setting in
the county which equated to about 13.5% of the pupils that would normally be
attending.
• Support and guidance continued to be in place for workplaces and businesses. A
business information pack had been developed by Northumberland County Council
and was being shared and agreed with the Northumbria Local Resilience Forum
(LRF) Compliance Cell to provide consistent advice to businesses across the LA7.
Specific focus had also been on how to provide support during this new lockdown
and responding to complaints, observations and requests for assistance.
• The high-risk individuals, communities and settings group continued to focus on the
key principles and was always well attended by all stakeholders.
It was felt that schools were now facing additional pressures following the move to
online learning. It was reported that this school closure had seen more children back
than the previous time. Schools had to ensure key worker and vulnerable children
were safe and socially distanced at school as well as continuing to educate all. A
question was raised as to how to ensure those children identified as vulnerable were
supported and how to guarantee a school place would be available if they needed it.
In response, it was reported that data was collected about how many vulnerable
children and key worker children were attending schools. Many professionals were in
contact and actively speaking to parents to ensure vulnerable children continued to
be where they needed to be, whether that was at home or in a school environment.
There was an element of parental choice but officers would help facilitate any child’s
attendance at school if it was felt right for the individual. Guidance for schools
continued to be monitored and updated with officers in dialogue with the DfE.
However, the guidance was clear that schools should be open to as many children as
needed whether they were deemed as vulnerable or that of key worker children.
RESOLVED that:1. the information be noted;
2. the infection rate in Northumberland and current issues, be noted, and
3. comments on the progress of the local COVID 19 Outbreak Prevention and
Control Plan be noted.
69.2 COVID 19 Vaccine Roll Out
Rachel Mitcheson, Service Director for Transformation and Integrated Care provided
a presentation on the COVID 19 vaccine roll out. (A copy of the powerpoint
presentation have been filed with the signed minutes).
•
•
•
•
•

The presentation detailed the following:The key communication messages from the NHS regarding the vaccine roll out.
The excellent response by GPs in delivering the vaccine.
The confusion surrounding the Government’s decision to postpone the second
vaccination, which had been expected to be 21 days after receiving the first dose, to
allow more people to receive the first dose, but this was now mandatory.
The different types of vaccine were highlighted with District Nurses now able to
vaccinate housebound patients.
Details on the Astra Zeneca/Oxford Vaccine which had recently been approved for
use along with the Moderna Vaccine.

Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 21

3

• The rollout specifying the phased priority groups. It was hoped by the end of the
week to have vaccinated to vast majority of care homes.
• It was noted that the data flows were being managed tightly nationally.
• It was advised that this was a fast moving programme which was changing daily.
• The Centre of Life had been identified as a Vaccination Centre and it was hoped
initial issues regarding people arriving too early for their appointment slot and
queuing had been addressed. Starting this week it was also envisaged that the
centre would operate under a national booking system.
• It was planned that community pharmacies would come online to support with the
Oxford Vaccine. It was also hoped that there may be some capacity within the
Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (CNTW) to also
help with the rollout.
• The North East and Yorkshire had so far delivered 175,000 vaccines (130,000
delivered by Primary Care). It was reported that we were so far the best performing
region in England.
• The excellent feedback being received from those who have received their
vaccination.

•
•
•

•
•

•

•

Following the presentation a number of comments and questions were raised,
including:Congratulations to Primary Care for their work so far regarding the roll out of the
vaccination.
Comments on the initial problems that had been reported regarding people arriving
too early for their appointments at the Centre of Life.
Clarification on the immunisation programme and when certain
workforces/professional groups could be offered a vaccination. It was confirmed that
although the immunisation programme had been established in order to protect those
who were at the highest risk from serious illness or death, discussions were taking
place regarding further professional groups being included within the programme
such as teachers, police and fire and rescue.
Clarification was also sought as to what was deemed as an at risk group within the
priority chart for the vaccine rollout. It was agreed for an answer to this question to be
provided to the board member after the meeting.
It was reported that there was transport available to anyone struggling to get to a
vaccination centre with Age UK being commissioned to provide assistance. It was
advised that due to the level of uptake GP receptionists were not automatically
arranging transport as many family members were able to take relatives to their
appointment. However, transport was available to anyone unable to arrange a lift
and people had to advise their surgery accordingly.
It was confirmed that GP surgeries did hold information of those people registered as
carers. This list would be used when arranging vaccine appointments. The
importance of those people registered as carers identifying themselves to their GP
surgery was noted.
Members were informed of the differences between those deemed as clinically
extremely vulnerable and those clinically vulnerable.
RESOLVED that the presentation and comments made be noted.

69.3 Northumberland Strategic Safeguarding Partnership (NSSP) Annual
Report April 2019- September 2020
Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 22

4

The report provided an overview of the work completed by the NSSP undertaken
from April 2019 to September 2020 and was presented by Paula Mead, the
Independent Chair, who advised it was a statutory requirement for the Board to
produce and publish an Annual Report. (A copy of the report has been filed with the
signed minutes as Appendix A).
The report described a range of achievements and progress of the NSSP priorities
during the year and highlighted the transition into the Northumberland Strategic
Safeguarding Partnership set out in the Children and Social Act 2017 undertaken in
June 2019.
The report also highlighted the work of the NSSP during the current coronavirus
pandemic to monitor, scrutinise and provide an information sharing opportunity for all
partners. The meetings ensured quick identification of risk and actions agreed to
mitigate the risks and the development of a Covid-19 performance framework to
identify any areas where there was an increase and used this to plan for increased
demand post Covid-19.
It was noted that the NSSP also undertook a series of Multi-agency audits. The
audits all included a robust action plan and have driven forward change across all
partner organisations.
It was also noted that the views of children were captured and incorporated into
planning and meetings. In response to a question as to what sort of comments were
received back from young children. It was confirmed that in general, they wanted to
feel safe, happy, and healthy and to have fun.
The Board thanked Paula for her excellent report and the achievements of the NSSP
during the last 18 months.
RESOLVED that the report be received for information.
69.4 North Tyneside and Northumberland Safeguarding Adults Annual Report –
2019/20
The report provided an overview of the work carried out under the multi-agency
arrangements for safeguarding adults in 2019/20 and was introduced by Paula Mead,
the Independent Chair, who advised it was a statutory requirement for the Board to
produce and publish an Annual Report. (A copy of the report has been filed with the
signed minutes as Appendix B).
The Committee was advised that the multi-agency arrangements ensured that
all partners worked together in a coordinated way to safeguard adults. There had
been an increase in reports of concern and safeguarding enquiries over the reporting
period, which the Board had been pleased to note as it meant that people were
coming forward. The cases had mostly involved physical abuse with some neglect
and financial abuse also being reported.

Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 23

5

Achievements over the period were highlighted including the further development of
the joint Children’s and Adults MASH, which was unusual as these were usually
separate entities, with a CNTW representative also now involved.
During the pandemic the key message to partners had been that safeguarding still
applied, in fact probably more so, with meetings being held regularly. It was reported
that there had been one serious case review. A number of cases which had been
referred did not meet the statutory requirements for a review however; the learning
from these had been disseminated to staff.
Regarding future Councillor training it was suggested that safeguarding training be
mandatory for all County Councillors.
The Board thanked Paula for her excellent report the achievements of the Adults
Safeguarding Board.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
69.5 COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT
Ann Bridges, Head of Communications gave a communications and engagement
update (a copy of the powerpoint slides have been filed with the signed minutes).
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The update included:The changing of measures from tier restrictions to a full lockdown and the excellent
work of the team to ensure the correct measures were being relayed to the public.
There was continued work being carried out with the national message around
lockdown.
There had been some frustration from the public towards the new full lockdown.
There had been reports of people finding loopholes to avoid restrictions.
Information provided by partners on vaccination was being shared.
It was being emphasised that patients needed to wait until they had been contacted
for their vaccination appointment.
It was reported that it was not just the local beauty spots that had seen a rise in the
number of visitors recently. There had been reports of people travelling to go
sledging or access beaches not deemed local to their area. It was advised that the
‘stay local’ message was being advertised and digital signage used to further
reinforce the ‘stay local’ message.
Work continued supporting the wraparound groups.
Messages regarding the Northumberland Communities Together Hub, free school
meals, remote learning and business grants had been generated.
There were detailed weekly briefings to Elected Members.
There was targeted work being carried out in Haltwhistle and Berwick following local
outbreaks.
51 Community Champions had been recruited and work was ongoing to build upon
this further.
Examples of the updated radio, TV and signage being used to get the updated
messages out to the public were shown to members.
The continued excellent partnership work and support being offered to healthcare
partners.

Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 24

6

•

Wider behavioural insight work would be carried out in the LA7 and Teeside. Also
targeted work was going to take place regarding people who were anxious or had
concerns about the COVID vaccination, particularly those who worked within a care
setting.
RESOLVED that the information provided within the presentation be noted.

70. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD – FORWARD PLAN
Members were presented with the Health and Wellbeing Board Forward Plan (a copy
of which has been filed with the signed minutes as Appendix C).
RESOLVED that the forward plan be noted.

71. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
RESOLVED that the next meeting will be held remotely on Thursday, 11 February
2021 at 10.00 a.m.
CHAIRMAN _____________________
DATE__________________________

Ch.’s Initials………
Health and Wellbeing Board, 14 January 2021

Page 25

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Clinicians commissioning healthcare for
the people of Northumberland

Page 27

Health and Wellbeing
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
2nd March 2021
Agenda Item 6

Rachel Mitcheson
Service Director for Transformation and
Integrated Care

Page 28

North East and Yorkshire

Page 29

• 12 weeks since first patients were
vaccinated
• 2,352,591 people vaccinated with a first
dose which is 34% of the eligible population
(16+)
• 94% of Care Home residents and 75% of
staff vaccinated
• 91% of Clinically Extremely Vulnerable
population vaccinated
Note: based on latest nationally published data (england.nhs.uk)

North East and North Cumbria ICS
• 846,897 people vaccinated with a first
dose which is 34% of the eligible
population (16+)

Northumberland
Page 30

• 102,831 people vaccinated with a first
dose which is 38% of the eligible
population (16+)
• 70,582 of those vaccinated are over 65
years of age, 88% of total population over
65
Note: based on latest nationally published data (england.nhs.uk)

PCN LVS sites
• Valens PCN: 2 sites @ Brockwell (Cramlington)
and Lintonville (Ashington)
• Cramlington and Seaton Valley PCN: 1 site @
Village Surgery (Cramlington)
• Blyth PCN: 1 site @ Railway Medical Group (Blyth)

Page 31

• Wansbeck PCN: 1 site @ Ashington Cricket Club
• West PCN: 2 sites @ Ponteland Medical group
and Hexham Primary Care Centre
• Well up North PCN: 3 sites @ Alnwick Cricket
Club, Coquet Medical Group (Amble) and Well
Close Surgery (Berwick)

Transport available for those unable to
access vaccination sites – established
at time of appointment

General update - Hospital hub

Page 32

• NUTH: have completed their frontline
employees able to be vaccinated.
• NHCFT: have vaccinated over 18,000 staff
across the wider health and social care system
(North Tyneside & Northumberland)
• CNTW: vaccinated over 80% of staff and have
also vaccinated most vulnerable inpatients
• Next priority for Hospital Hubs not identified…
• Second doses: due early March

Northumberland Social care staff
•
•
•
•
•

Care home staff
Home care staff
Adult Social care
Children social care
Commissioned services

Page 33

•
•

• Special School teachers (who carry
out personal care tasks)
• Funeral Directors
• Some Housing / property services
workers

11,163: total requiring vaccination
10,368: vaccinated to date

Northumberland Healthcare Staff

Page 34

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

NHCFT: employed and sub-contracted staff
CNTW: employed and sub-contracted staff
Primary Care
Pharmacists
Dentists
Opticians
NEAS
CCG commissioned services
– Hospice
– Vocare (OOH GP support etc.)
Others more unknown to Health and Social Care or future new
employees who meet the guidance can register via NECS to be
vaccinated at either Hospital, PCN site, or Vaccination Centre
Fantastic joint working across LA, CCG, FTs, LMC, LPC etc.

Vaccination Centres

Page 35

• Closest is at Centre for Life – utilises National
Booking Service (NBS)
• Currently supporting JCVI groups 5 & 6 and
remaining Health and Social care workers
• National process for selecting patient groups
and sending letters out
• Supply/demand issues with NBS means patients
are offered appointments across region and
beyond (Stockton, Durham, Sunderland etc.)
• Key message: People can still choose and
stay local and WAIT to be contacted by PCNs

Priority Groups

Page 36

We have offered
vaccinations to all
within JCVI priority
groups 1 – 4.
Next national target:
groups 5-9 (everbody
over 50 years of age)
by 15th April

COVID-19 vaccination programme publications - Public Health England

10

JCVI groups 5 & 6…
• Primary care started cohort 5 to avoid any waste of
vaccine whilst completing groups 1-4.
• Increasing pace – national guidance changed

Page 37

Cohort 5
65 – 69 year olds

Cohort 6
Adults 18 - 65 in an at risk
group and unpaid carers

Community Pharmacy
National Booking system
(access via National letters)

Primary Care Networks

• No Community Pharmacies currently designated
• No Vaccination Centre in Northumberland

• PCNs will call all of groups 5 & 6 to be
vaccinated locally – but patients MUST WAIT
to be contacted by their GP

Cohort 6

Page 38

• All individuals aged 16 years to 65 years
with underlying health conditions which
put them at higher risk of serious
disease and mortality (PHE Green Book,
Chapter 14a)
• Adult Carers - those who are in receipt of
a carer’s allowance, or those who are the
main carer of an elderly or disabled
person whose welfare may be at risk if
the carer falls ill.

Second dose update

Page 39

• Notification of first 3 weeks of 2nd dose
allocations received by PCNs
• Agreement has been reached that second doses
will be given in Week 11 (+/– 7 days)
• w/c 1st March start for Northumberland
• Hospital hubs will support those people who
had a reaction to the first dose or are advised
to do so by a clinician.
• Hoping for a move to a pull model to enable
better planning and for PCNs to maximise
capacity.

Looking ahead – maintaining momentum

10

PCN Local Vaccination Service Sites

102,831
Page 40

147,746
63%

doses delivered in

11 weeks (Dec – Feb)

doses (including 2nd doses) to deliver in

9 weeks (Mar – Apr)

increase in number of doses required for groups 5-9 (with

106%*

2 weeks less)

average % increase in capacity required per PCN site vs first wave

Note: dose and % figures approximate, based on PCN data

Page 41

Note: dose and % figures approximate, based on PCN data

Page 42

Note: dose and % figures approximate, based on PCN data

Coverage across Northumberland
Primary care sites
Regular roving sites
Page 43

Possible larger Vaccination
Centre
Community Pharmacies
to follow

Vaccine Equity Board

Page 44

• Joint group established between CCG and
LA Public Health colleagues
• Identifying and addressing potential areas
of inequity within the vaccination roll out
• Priorities are BAME groups – especially
black communities, GRT communities,
LD/SMI registered patients, socioeconomic deprivation
• Regional comms group established and
roving clinics will help reach out to groups

Increasing capacity and
providing more choice

Page 45

The Future…

Page 46

• It will take between approx. 4 weeks before we see a
significant reduction in hospital admissions and
deaths amongst our most elderly patients as a result of
vaccination, evidence is slowly beginning to show
• It will take between 4-6 months before we see a
significant reduction in community transmission as a
result of the vaccination programme (will require 70-80%
of the population to be immunised).
• Initial studies show that AZ vaccine may have up to a
67% impact on reducing transmission
• Potential for mixing doses – studies underway nationally
• Key message as we continue – wait your turn, please
be patient, you will not be missed…

Any questions?

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

The Coroner Service
Excess Death Management

2 March 2021

Agenda Item 7

Andrew Hetherington, Senior Coroner
Karen Lounton, Service Manager

The Role of the Senior Coroner and Coroner
Service

Page 50

● A Coroner is a judge who investigates unnatural or violent deaths, where the
cause of death is unknown, or because the death took place in prison, police
custody or another type of state detention.
● The Coroner's role is to find out who died and how, and when and where they
died.
● Responsibility for treasure inquests. Northumberland 'county of treasure'.
● The Coroner is a judicial office holder, who is completely independent and
appointed directly by the Crown.
● The Coroner Service is funded locally by Northumberland County Council, and
this includes the provision of court and office accommodation, IT systems and
administrative staff. In Northumberland, Coroner's Officers are employed by
Northumbria Police.

The Coroner Service in Northumberland

Page 51

● At the retirement of the previous Senior Coroner (Tony Brown) on 30 September
2020, Andrew Hetherington was appointed as Senior Coroner for
Northumberland, effective from 1 October 2020.
● The area is split into two Coroner jurisdictions, North and South
Northumberland. Work is ongoing with the Chief Coroner and MoJ to formally
merge the areas into one Coroner jurisdiction for Northumberland. This will
conclude during 2021. A Statutory Instrument is required to complete this.
● The Coroner Service is now located in the new court and office suite (Hadrian
Rooms) in County Hall, ground floor, block 2.
● Senior Coroner, Coroner's Officers and administrative support staff are located
together, in County Hall.
● The Coroner Service is co-located with the Registration Service in County Hall
and this supports effective management of the bereavement process which
families experience when they lose a loved one. The service sits within the HR /
OD Directorate.

New Accommodation for the Coroner Service

Page 52

● Historically the delivery of the Coroner Service in Northumberland and the
offices the staff worked from was fragmented.
● The Senior Coroner worked from offices in Berwick and used Berwick
Magistrates Court for inquests.
● Administrative staff were based in Berwick and North Tyneside.
● Coroner's Officers worked from Ashington Police Station.
● As part of the County Hall refurbishment programme, a business case was
made for the Coroner Service and its staff to be centralised and located in
a more accessible location to families, officers and professionals who were
required to attend an inquest. County Hall, Morpeth was the agreed location.
● Approval given, work commenced on the new court and accommodation which
was completed October 2020. First inquest held in the new court 3 November
2020
● Inquests are held in court daily and listed ahead until September 2021.
● Thanks to Lee Grange and Damon Barnaby for their support with the project.

Coroner's Court - Entrance

Page 53

Coroner's Court – Waiting Room

Page 54

Coroner's Court

Page 55

Coroner's Court – Family Room

Page 56

Coroner's Court – Jury Room

Page 57

Continuing Modernisation of the Coroner Service

Page 58

● Use of technology available in the new court to facilitate remote hearings and
safe working. Online portal reporting of deaths, 24/7.
● Paper lite court work and digitally enabled working. Website development.
● Closer working with key stakeholders such as Northumbria NHS Trust,
Medical Examiner, Northumbria Police, Funeral Directors, Registration Service
and Bereavement Service.
● Review of current post-mortem services, in partnership with Northumbria NHS
Trust. Explore non-invasive post-mortems.
● Revised structure to introduce a First Officer post to the service.
● Assistant Coroner cross authority recruitment and resource. North of the Tyne
coronial resilience.
● Embed a culture of continuing improvement, engagement and innovation in the
service. Strong links between the Senior Coroner and the Executive and
Members.

Death Management Group (DMG)

Page 59

● During pandemic, there is potential for a significant increase in the number of
deaths over a relatively short period of time, placing pressure on local service
providers with responsibility for management of the deceased.
● The Death Management Group (DMG) is formed of relevant local authority,
coroner, NHS, funeral director, emergency services and military planner (when
deployed) representatives from the LA6 (Northumberland, North Tyneside,
Newcastle, Gateshead, South Tyneside, and Sunderland).
● For Northumberland Andrew Hetherington, Senior Coroner and Karen
Lounton, Service Manager for Registration, Coroner and
Archives provide representation.
● The DMG reports to TCG and SCG to co-ordinate the management of excess
deaths at a multi-agency level.
● At the heart of the death management process is a commitment to ensure
the deceased are always managed with dignity and respect.

DMG Objectives

Page 60

● Ensure there is effective communication flow with TCG, SCG, local authority
Chief Executives, multi agencies, and the Northumbria Local Resilience
Forum.
● Co-ordinate with all agencies involved in the death management process.
● Continual development and review of a Death Management Plan.
● Monitoring of capacity and operations across all areas of excess deaths.
● Provide data modelling and data management systems.
● Establish a RAG rating system in relation to death registration, burial and
cremation, NHS mortuary capacity and body storage capacity across funeral
directors for each local authority area.
● Develop a Pandemic Multi Agency Response Team (PMART) relating to body
movement across the region.
● Communications and reporting streams.
● Provide assurance to TCG and SCG that all relevant policies, processes and
resources are in place and effective.

Mortuary Capacity in Northumberland
● Across Northumbria NHS Trust sites, there are a total of 184 fridges as part of
business-as-usual arrangements, plus 36 surge capacity fridges. Site capacity
is summarised as follows:

Page 61

➢
➢
➢
➢

North Tyneside General Hospital – 88 BAU fridges
Wansbeck General Hospital – 24 BAU fridges
Hexham General Hospital – 20 BAU fridges and 26 surge capacity fridges
NSECH – 52 BAU fridges and 10 surge capacity fridges.

● Capacity over the previous few months has been a consistent 30%-50% in
use. Currently around 50% levels, with pressure beginning to ease.
● Northumbria NHS Trust mortuary capacity held well during the second covid
wave peak, which was experienced at end of January 2021.
Effective management saw capacity not breach DMG trigger levels.

Northumberland Death Registration Figures
April

May

June

July

August

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

March

265

235

235

211

240

223

218

273

265

303

232

247

2017-18

233

288

293

251

279

306

286

294

318

461

321

352

2018-19

257

255

271

285

258

252

271

288

299

324

286

310

2019-20

275

304

251

274

302

251

314

319

354

361

301

301

2020-21

551

354

264

264

231

303

332

365

399

422

2016-17

Page 62

Death Registration in Northumberland – 5-year average

Page 63

Any Questions?

Contact Details

Page 64

●
●
●
●

Andrew Hetherington, Senior Coroner
M: 07816109096
T: 01670 623130
E: andrew.hetherington@northumberland.gov.uk

● Karen Lounton, Service Manager
● M: 07966329165
● E: karen.lounton@northumberland.gov.uk

Northumberland County Council
Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2019 - 2020

Page 65
TERMS OF REFERENCE
18 February 2021 - CA

Agenda Item 8

Chris Angus, Scrutiny Officer
01670 622604 - Chris.Angus@Northumberland.gov.uk

Page 1

To monitor, review and make recommendations about the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

To promote well-being and reduce health inequality, particularly in supporting those people who feel more vulnerable or are at risk.
To discharge the functions conferred by section 21(f) of the Local Government Act 2000 of reviewing and scrutinising, in accordance
with regulations under section 7 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001, matters relating to the planning, provision and operation of
health services in Northumberland.
To take a holistic view of health in order to promote the social, environmental and economic well-being of local people.
To act as a consultee as required by the relevant regulations in respect of those matters on which local NHS bodies must consult the
Committee.
To make reports and recommendations to local NHS bodies and the County Council on matters relating to the following
services/issues in Northumberland:

Page 66

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Adult Care and Social Services
Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing
Financial Inclusion and Fuel Poverty
Welfare of Vulnerable People
Carers’ Wellbeing
Independent Living and Supported Housing

(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)

Adult Health Services
Healthy Eating and Physical Activity
Smoking Cessation
Alcohol and Drugs Misuse
Safeguarding Adults.

ISSUES TO BE SCHEDULED/CONSIDERED
Regular updates: Updates on implications of legislation: As required / Minutes of Health and Wellbeing Board / notes of the
18 February 2021 - CA

Page 2

Primary Care Applications Working Party
Care Quality Accounts/ Ambulance response times
To be listed:

Update on learning disability funding
Adult Social Care Green Paper
Urgent Care Update: Developing the Strategic Direction for Urgent Care in Northumberland (CCG)

Themed scrutiny: Improving Health and Fitness Task and Finish Group
Other scrutiny:
Rothbury Hospital Referral Review Group

Page 67
18 February 2021 - CA

Page 3

Northumberland County Council
Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2019 - 2020
2 March 2021
Coroner’s Service
COVID-19 Update (Public Health/CCG)
6 April 2021
Northumbria Healthcare Quality Accounts
COVID-19 Update (CNTW)

Page 68
Northumberland County Council
Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee Monitoring Report 2019-2020

Ref Date
18 February 2021 - CA

Report

Decision

Outcome
Page 4

4 June 2019

Adult Services Market
Position Statement

RESOLVED that Cabinet be recommended to ratify the revised
Market Position Statement and agree to its publication.

Cabinet agreed the report

2.

4 June 2019

Update on Rothbury
Community Hospital

RESOLVED that
1. the information be noted; and
2. a further update be provided in autumn 2019, possibly in
September.

Further update provided in
September 2019, and further one
to follow

3.

4 June 2019

Update on Ambulance
Performance

RESOLVED that
1. that the information be noted; and
2. responses be provided to the committee’s questions
about blood kits, vehicle insurance arrangements for
Community First Responders and a list of the locations
of all defibrillators.

NEAS provided written response to
questions

4.

4 June 2019

End of Life Care Update

RESOLVED that
the report be noted;
1. a presentation be organised for the committee’s meeting
on 4 September to involve Northumbria NHS Trust, the
CCG and Healthwatch; and
2. consideration about creating a task and finish group be
deferred until after the presentation is received on 4
September 2019.

Further item due on 3 September
2019

5.

4 June 2019

Recommendations from
Themed Scrutiny
Review: Improving
Health and Fitness in
Northumberland

RESOLVED that
1. the report be welcomed and forwarded to Cabinet to
consider on 9 July 2019 and consider adopting the
recommendations of the review; and
2. the subgroup continue with a monitoring role and its
membership remain as Councillors Dungworth, Moore,
Rickerby and Watson.

Subgroup to meet on 1 October
2019

Page 69

1.

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 5

4 June 2019

Dental Services in
Coquetdale - Update
(NHS England)

7.

2 July 2019

Customer Experience:
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and
Joint Children’s and
members’ comments on suggested changes for the following
Adult Services Customer year’s report be followed up.
Experience:
Compliments and
Complaints Annual
Report 2018/19

Next report due in 2020

8.

2 July 2019

Welfare Rights Annual
Report 2018/19

RESOLVED that the information be noted and issues identified
be followed up.

Next report due in 2020

9.

2 July 2019

The Joint
Musculoskeletal (MSK)
and Pain Service
(JMAPS)

RESOLVED that the information be noted and the issue be
scrutinised at this committee’s next meeting on 3 September
2019, with any updates provided if required.

Further update on 3 September
2019

10.

2 July 2019

Physical Activity
Strategy

RESOLVED that the report be noted and Northumberland Sport
consider members’ comments.

None

11.

3 September 2019

Update on Berwick
Hospital

RESOLVED that the information be noted and a further update
be provided for the committee in either November or December
2019.

Update due in January 2020

12.

3 September 2019

Update on Rothbury
Hospital

RESOLVED that it be agreed that:
1. sufficient time has been provided to the committee to
consider and comment on the proposals before the final
decision on approving a recommended proposal is made
by the CCG;

Update due in January 2020

Page 70

6.

18 February 2021 - CA

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

No further updated currently
planned

Page 6

2. the information provided in the appendix to the report
demonstrate that the recommendations to date from the
Secretary of State and Independent Reconfiguration
Panel have been appropriately considered and either
met or form part of the ongoing process;
3. there is satisfaction that the model is in the best interests
of healthcare provision in the area and the proposal does
not constitute a substantial variation in service nor
require any further consultation;
4. the committee’s views be sent to the Secretary of State
for Health and Social Care; and
5. an update be provided to the committee in either
December 2019 or January 2020.
3 September 2019

Update on Whalton Unit

RESOLVED that
1. the information be noted; and
2. an update on the Whalton Unit be provided to the
Committee in November 2019.

Update due in November 2019

14.

3 September 2019

Update on the Joint
Musculoskeletal (MSK)
and Pain Service
(JMAPS)

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

No further action

15.

3 September 2019

Annual Report of the
Director of Public Health

RESOLVED that the
1. content of the report be noted; and
2. recommendations be accepted and supported.

Next report due in 2020

16.

1 October 2019

Cancer Performance Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

No further action

13.

Page 71

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 7

1 October 2019

Sepsis Performance Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

No further action

18.

1 October 2019

End of Life Care Update

RESOLVED that
1. the update be noted
2. Democratic Services follow up options for arrangements
for the further scrutiny of this issue and report back.

Committee members to participate
in the CCG’s task and finish group

19.

1 October 2019

Urgent Care Update:
Developing the Strategic
Direction for Urgent
Care in Northumberland

RESOLVED that
1. the report be noted;
2. issues raised by the committee be considered as part of
the consultation; and
3. a further report be presented to the committee in
February 2020.

Further report to be presented to
the committee in February 2020.

20.

5 November 2019

Relocation of the
Whalton Unit to
Wansbeck General
Hospital

RESOLVED that the decision made by the NCCG to relocate
the Whalton Unit to Wansbeck General Hospital was not a
substantial change in service delivery.

A further update will be presented
to the Committee in around six
months.

21.

5 November 2019

Winter Planning Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as appropriate.

22.

5 November 2019

Healthwatch
Northumberland - Six
Month Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as appropriate.

23.

3 December 2019

Specialist Substance
Misuse Services Update

RESOLVED that the following be noted:

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as appropriate.

Page 72

17.

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 8

1. the ongoing work undertaken by partners to reduce the
harms caused by drugs and alcohol during 2019/20;
2. the financial pressures on Northumberland Recovery
Partnership; and
3. members’ comments.
3 December 2019

Safeguarding Adults
Annual Report

RESOLVED that the report be noted

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as appropriate.

25.

7 January 2020

Update on Rothbury
Hospital

RESOLVED that
1. the information be noted; and
2. a further update be organised in due course,
provisionally for late 2020.

The Committee will receive an
update in late 2020

26.

7 January 2020

CEDAR Programme

RESOLVED that
1. the information be noted; and
2. a further update be organised in due course,
provisionally for early 2021.

The Committee will receive an
update at a later date.

27.

4 February 2020

Partnerships with NHS
Bodies

RESOLVED that the report be noted

The Committee will continue to
receive updates as appropriate

28.

4 February 2020

Northumberland Primary
Care Strategy and
Associated
Developments

RESOLVED that the report be noted

No further action required

29.

3 March 2020

Quality Account –
Northumbria NHS
Foundation Trust

RESOLVED that the presentation be noted.

Written response to be sent in May
2020

Page 73

24.

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 9

30.

3 March 2020

Berwick Hospital Update

RESOLVED that the presentation be noted.

No further action required

31.

3 March 2020

Oral Health Strategy Update

RESOLVED that

Updates to be provided at future
dates

1. progress with the Northumberland Oral Health Strategy
Action Plan be noted;
2. it be confirmed that assurance had been provided that
the correct processes that should be addressed as part
of the community water fluoridation scheme had been
applied;
3. issues or concerns that may be raised by affected
communities that should be addressed as part of the
community water fluoridation consultation were noted.

Page 74

32.

3 March 2020

Coronavirus

RESOLVED that the update be noted

A further update to be received at
the next meeting

34

2 June 2020

Update on COVID 19

RESOLVED that:-

Further COVID 19 updates to be
given to the committee

1.

the two tests available and the various processes for
testing nationally, regionally and locally be noted;
2. the implications for control of transmission in high risk
settings arising from issues with the current mechanisms
and processes for testing and the difficulties in
influencing national processes be acknowledged;
3. the new NHS Test and Trace model and implications for
the Council be noted; and
4. the plans for the development and governance of the
council's Outbreak Control Plan be noted.

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 10

2 June 2020

Letter from the Chief
Executive to the Minister
of State for Care
regarding the Care
Home Support Plan
(Urgent Business)

RESOLVED that the information be noted

No further action

36

2 June 2020

Operation Apollo Confidential Briefing
(Urgent Business)

RESOLVED that the information be noted

No further action

37

2 June 2020

Pre-Scrutiny:Independent Supported
living Services

RESOLVED that recommendations 1-5 in the Report of the
Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Children’s Services
be approved.

The Committee’s comments were
considered at the Cabinet meeting
held on 9 June.

38

14 July

Covid-19 Northumberland County
Council Response

RESOLVED that the reports on Northumberland County
Council’s response and recovery be received.

Further COVID 19 updates to be
given to the committee

39

14 July

Covid-19 - Planning for
Recovery in
Northumberland

RESOLVED that the reports on Northumberland County
Council’s response and recovery be received.

Further COVID 19 updates to be
given to the committee

40

14 July

COVID-19 Update by
Northumbria Healthcare
and the CCG

RESOLVED that the presentations be received

No further action

41

14 July

Healthwatch
Northumberland – Six
monthly update

RESOLVED that the presentation be received

No further action

Page 75

35

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 11

21 September

Update on the
Northumberland
COVID 19 Outbreak
Prevention and
Control Plan

43

21 September

Director of Public
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.
Health - Annual Report

No further action

44

21 September

Complaints Annual
Report 2019/2020 Adult social care,
children’s social care,
and continuing health
care services

RESOLVED that the report be noted

No further action

21 September

End of Life Strategy
Update

RESOLVED that

End of Life Strategy to be added to
the work programme

Page 76

42

45

RESOLVED that the report be received.

The Committee will continue to
receive regular COVID updates

1. the presentation be received
2. the Northumberland End of Life Strategy be added
to the work programme when further information
was available.
46

6 October

18 February 2021 - CA

COVID Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted

To receive a continuous update

Page 12

6 October

NHS Winter Planning
Update

RESOLVED that the presentation be received.

Further information to be provided
to the committee at a later date

48

6 October

CNTW- Quality
Account presentation

RESOLVED that the presentations be received

Written response to be sent in
October 2020

49

3 November

COVID Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted

To receive further ongoing
updates

50

3 November

Discretionary grants
for adaptations to
housing for disabled
people

RESOLVED that Cabinet:-

The Committee’s comments
were considered at the Cabinet
meeting held on 10 November.

COVID Recovery
Report

RESOLVED that Cabinet:-

Page 77

47

51

3 November

1. Adopt the discretionary grants policy attached as
Appendix A to the report.
2. Note the funding for grants made under this policy
would come from the grant to the local authority for
DFGs.

To receive future updates on the
recovery strategy

1. Note the ongoing impact of the Coronavirus
emergency on the County Council.
2. Acknowledge the continued work undertaken to
date by the Council
3. Agree to receive further reports on the work being
undertaken by the Council, particularly in the light of
new local and national restrictions introduced
recently; and,
18 February 2021 - CA

Page 13

4. Invite the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to
examine updates on response and recovery plans.

3 November

Newcastle upon Tyne
Hospital’s Quality
Accounts

Due to technical issues, this agenda item was deferred.

53

1 December

North East Ambulance
Service – Quality
Accounts

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

54

1 December

Northumberland
Community Together

RESOLVED that:-

Page 78

52

1. The ongoing impact of the Coronavirus emergency
on the residents of Northumberland and the need
for a collaborative partnership response be noted.

To be rescheduled for a later
date

A presentation to be given in
January on the work undertaken
by NCT throughout December

2. The continued work undertaken to date by the
service to build community capability and capacity
to respond be noted.
3. Further clarity and assurance through scrutiny and
challenge, helping to set future strategy and
prioritised action be sought.
4. Further reports on the work being undertaken by the
Northumberland Communities Together Service,
aligned to corporate response and recovery plans
be received.

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 14

12 January 2021

North Tyneside and
Northumberland
Safeguarding Adults
Annual Reports 201920

RESOLVED that the report be noted

No further action

56

12 January 2021

COVID Vaccine

RESOLVED that the information be noted

Further update to be given in
March

57

12 January 2021

CEDAR

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

No further action

58

12 January 2021

Northumberland
RESOLVED that the information be noted.
Communities Together

No further action

59

2 February 2021

Northumbria
Healthcare COVID-19
Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted

Further update to be scheduled

60

2 February 2021

Northumberland CCG
COVID-19 Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

Further update to be scheduled

61

2 February 2021

Northumbria
Healthcare/CCG
Cancer Update

RESOLVED that the information be noted.

No further action

Page 79

55

18 February 2021 - CA

Page 15

Page 80
18 February 2021 - CA

Page 16

